

SENATE BILL 795

B4

(8lr2782)

ENROLLED BILL

—Budget and Taxation / Appropriations—

Introduced by **Senator DeGrange**

Read and Examined by Proofreaders:

Proofreader.

Proofreader.

Sealed with the Great Seal and presented to the Governor, for his approval this

_____ day of _____ at _____ o'clock, _____ M.

President.

CHAPTER _____

1 AN ACT concerning

2 **Prior Authorizations of State Debt to Fund Capital Projects - Alterations**

3 FOR the purpose of amending certain prior Acts of the General Assembly that
4 authorized the creation of State Debt through the issuance, sale, and delivery of
5 general obligation bonds, the proceeds of which were designated for funding
6 certain capital projects; requiring certain loan proceeds to be encumbered by the
7 Board of Public Works or expended for certain purposes by a certain date;
8 altering the ~~names of certain grantees~~ grantees under certain projects; altering
9 and expanding the authorized uses of certain grants; ~~removing~~ altering a
10 ~~requirement~~ certain requirements that ~~a certain grantee~~ certain grantees
11 provide and expend a certain matching fund; *repealing certain requirements*
12 *that a certain grantee grant and convey an historic easement to the Maryland*
13 *Historical Trust*; requiring that ~~a certain grantee~~ certain grantees provide and
14 expend a certain type of matching fund; altering the location of certain capital
15 projects; extending the deadline by which ~~a certain grantee~~ certain grantees

EXPLANATION: CAPITALS INDICATE MATTER ADDED TO EXISTING LAW.

[Brackets] indicate matter deleted from existing law.

Underlining indicates amendments to bill.

~~Strike out~~ indicates matter stricken from the bill by amendment or deleted from the law by amendment.

Italics indicate opposite chamber / conference committee amendments.



1 must present evidence to the Board of Public Works that certain matching
2 funds will be provided; making other technical changes; and generally relating
3 to prior authorizations of State Debt by the General Assembly to fund certain
4 capital projects.

5 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
6 Chapter 555 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 1999, as amended by
7 Chapter 30 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001, Chapter 188 of
8 the Acts of the General Assembly of 2002, and Chapter 550 of the Acts of
9 the General Assembly of 2006
10 Section 1

11 BY repealing and reenacting, without amendments,
12 Chapter 317 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2000, as amended by
13 Chapter 168 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2002, Chapter 149 of
14 the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004, and Chapter 76 of the Acts of
15 the General Assembly of 2007
16 Section 1(1)

17 BY adding to
18 Chapter 317 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2000, as amended by
19 Chapter 168 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2002, Chapter 149 of
20 the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004, and Chapter 76 of the Acts of
21 the General Assembly of 2007
22 Section 1(6)

23 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
24 Chapter 508 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2000, as amended by Chapter
25 488 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2007
26 Section 1(3) Item SA23(C)

27 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
28 Chapter 162 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
29 Section 1

30 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
31 Chapter 163 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
32 Section 1

33 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
34 Chapter 175 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
35 Section 1

36 BY repealing and reenacting, without amendments,
37 Chapter 243 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001, as amended by Chapter
38 219 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004
39 Section 1(1)

1 BY adding to
2 Chapter 243 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001, as amended by Chapter
3 219 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004
4 Section 1(6)

5 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
6 Chapter 326 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001, as amended by
7 Chapter 30 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003 and Chapter 188
8 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2005
9 Section 1

10 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
11 Chapter 432 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
12 Section 1

13 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
14 Chapter 466 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
15 Section 1

16 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
17 Chapter 673 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001
18 Section 1

19 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
20 Chapter 680 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2001, as amended by
21 Chapter 32 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003, and Chapter 30
22 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004
23 Section 1

24 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
25 Chapter 204 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003, as amended by
26 Chapter 432 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004
27 Section 13(3)(i) Item (BJ)

28 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
29 Chapter 204 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003, as amended by
30 Chapter 432 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004 and Chapter 555
31 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2006
32 Section 13(3)(i) Item (BI)

33 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
34 Chapter 204 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003, as amended by
35 Chapter 432 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2004, and Chapter
36 608 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2006
37 Section 13(3)(i) Item (AM)

1 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
 2 Chapter 204 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2003, as amended by
 3 Chapter 176 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2005
 4 Section 1(3) Item ZA00(B)

5 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
 6 Chapter 445 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2005
 7 Section 1(3) Item ZA01(U) and ZA02(Y) and (BK)

8 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
 9 Chapter 445 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2005, as amended by Chapter
 10 65 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2007
 11 Section 1(3) Item ZA01(AR) and ZA02(AV)

12 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
 13 Chapter 46 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2006
 14 Section 1(3) Item ZA00(C), ZA01(K), (R), (V), (AC), (AD), (AZ), (BB), (BW), ~~and~~
 15 ~~(CK)~~ (CA), (CK), and (CP), and ~~ZA02(W)~~ ZA02(N), (W) ~~and (AC)~~, (AC),
 16 (AD), (AZ), and (BU)

17 BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
 18 Chapter 488 of the Acts of the General Assembly of 2007
 19 Section 1(3) Item KA05(A)(4), ZA00(B) and (S), ~~ZA01(AV) and (Z)~~, ~~ZA01(Z)~~,
 20 ZA01(X), (Z), (AV), (BD), and (BV), and ~~ZA02(BI)~~, ZA02(AP-1), (BI), (BL),
 21 (BO), ~~and (CC)~~ (BT), (CC), and (CE)

22 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
 23 MARYLAND, That the Laws of Maryland read as follows:

24 **Chapter 555 of the Acts of 1999, as amended by Chapter 30 of the Acts of 2001,**
 25 **Chapter 188 of the Acts of 2002, and Chapter 550 of the Acts of 2006**

26 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
 27 MARYLAND, That:

28 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
 29 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Baltimore
 30 City – Community Initiatives Academy Loan of 1999 in a total principal amount equal
 31 to the lesser of (i) \$200,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided in
 32 accordance with Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale,
 33 and delivery of State general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board
 34 of Public Works and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8–117 through
 35 8–124 of the State Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

36 (2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold
 37 as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds
 38 under § 8–122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.

1 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
2 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
3 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
4 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
5 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
6 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of Community
7 Initiatives, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the planning,
8 design, construction, renovation, reconstruction, repair, and capital equipping of the
9 Community Initiatives Academy, an educational institution to serve underserved
10 inner-city students from kindergarten through grade 12 in a multi-cultural urban
11 environment.

12 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
13 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
14 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
15 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

16 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
17 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
18 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either
19 directly or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or
20 unappropriated. No part of the fund may consist of real property or in kind
21 contributions. The fund may consist of funds expended prior to the effective date of
22 this Act. In case of any dispute as to the amount of the matching fund or what money
23 or assets may qualify as matching funds, the Board of Public Works shall determine
24 the matter and the Board's decision is final. The grantee has until June 1, 2004, to
25 present evidence satisfactory to the Board of Public Works that a matching fund will
26 be provided. If satisfactory evidence is presented, the Board shall certify this fact and
27 the amount of the matching fund to the State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan
28 equal to the amount of the matching fund shall be expended for the purposes provided
29 in this Act. Any amount of the loan in excess of the amount of the matching fund
30 certified by the Board of Public Works shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

31 (6) No portion of the proceeds of the loan or any of the matching funds may
32 be used for the furtherance of sectarian religious instruction, or in connection with the
33 design, acquisition, or construction of any building used or to be used as a place of
34 sectarian religious worship or instruction, or in connection with any program or
35 department of divinity for any religious denomination. Upon the request of the Board
36 of Public Works, the grantee shall submit evidence satisfactory to the Board that none
37 of the proceeds of the loan or any matching funds have been or are being used for a
38 purpose prohibited by this Act.

39 (7) The proceeds of the loan must be expended or encumbered by the Board
40 of Public Works for the purposes provided in this Act no later than June 1, [2008]
41 **2009. IF ANY FUNDS AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR**
42 **UNENCUMBERED AFTER JUNE 1, 2009, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED**

1 OR UNEXPENDED AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO
 2 FURTHER EFFECT. IF BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT
 3 OF UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF
 4 AS PROVIDED IN § 8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT
 5 ARTICLE.

6 Chapter 317 of the Acts of 2000, as amended by Chapter 168 of the Acts of
 7 2002, Chapter 149 of the Acts of 2004, and Chapter 76 of the Acts of 2007

8 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
 9 MARYLAND, That:

10 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
 11 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Baltimore
 12 County – Arbutus Community Facility Loan of 2000 in a total principal amount equal
 13 to the lesser of (i) \$250,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided in
 14 accordance with Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale,
 15 and delivery of State general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board
 16 of Public Works and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8-117 through
 17 8-124 of the State Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

18 (6) THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR
 19 ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES
 20 PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2010. IF ANY FUNDS
 21 AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER
 22 JUNE 1, 2010, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED
 23 AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF
 24 BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR
 25 UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §
 26 8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.

27 Chapter 508 of the Acts of 2000, as amended
 28 by Chapter 488 of the Acts of 2007

29 Section 1(3)

30 DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

31 SA23 DIVISION OF HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL
 32 PROGRAMS
 33 (Statewide)

34 JEFFERSON PATTERSON PARK AND
 35 MUSEUM
 36 (Calvert County)

1 (C) Construct Addition and Renovation to Visitors'
 2 Center. Provide funds to complete detailed plans
 3 for, construct and equip an addition to, and
 4 renovate the existing visitors' center at Jefferson
 5 Patterson Park and Museum. Notwithstanding
 6 Section 8-128 of the State Finance and
 7 Procurement Article, this authorization shall not
 8 terminate prior to June 1, [2008] 2009 1,704,000

Chapter 162 of the Acts of 2001

10 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
11 MARYLAND, That:

12 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
 13 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the St. Mary's
 14 County – St. Clement's Island Lighthouse Memorial Loan of 2001 in a total principal
 15 amount equal to the lesser of (i) \$50,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund
 16 provided in accordance with Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the
 17 issuance, sale, and delivery of State general obligation bonds authorized by a
 18 resolution of the Board of Public Works and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance
 19 with §§ 8-117 through 8-124 of the State Finance and Procurement Article and
 20 Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

21 (2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold
 22 as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds
 23 under § 8-122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.

24 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
 25 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
 26 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
 27 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
 28 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
 29 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of St. Clement's
 30 Hundred, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the planning,
 31 design, and construction of a memorial structure that replicates the outline of the
 32 former St. Clement's Island Lighthouse in size and shape, to be located near the
 33 original site at St. Clement's Island State Park.

34 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
 35 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
 36 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
 37 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

38 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
 39 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
 40 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either

1 directly or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or
 2 unappropriated. No part of the fund may consist of real property or funds expended
 3 prior to the effective date of this Act. The fund may consist of in kind contributions. In
 4 case of any dispute as to the amount of the matching fund or what money or assets
 5 may qualify as matching funds, the Board of Public Works shall determine the matter
 6 and the Board's decision is final. The grantee has until June 1, 2003, to present
 7 evidence satisfactory to the Board of Public Works that a matching fund will be
 8 provided. If satisfactory evidence is presented, the Board shall certify this fact and the
 9 amount of the matching fund to the State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan
 10 equal to the amount of the matching fund shall be expended for the purposes provided
 11 in this Act. Any amount of the loan in excess of the amount of the matching fund
 12 certified by the Board of Public Works shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

13 **(6) THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR**
 14 **ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES**
 15 **PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2010. IF ANY FUNDS**
 16 **AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER**
 17 **JUNE 1, 2010, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED**
 18 **AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF**
 19 **BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR**
 20 **UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §**
 21 **8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

22 **Chapter 163 of the Acts of 2001**

23 **SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF**
 24 **MARYLAND, That:**

25 **(1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on**
 26 **behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Baltimore**
 27 **City – Ivy Family Support Center Loan of 2001 in a total principal amount equal to**
 28 **the lesser of (i) \$225,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided in**
 29 **accordance with Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale,**
 30 **and delivery of State general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board**
 31 **of Public Works and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8-117 through**
 32 **8-124 of the State Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.**

33 **(2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold**
 34 **as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds**
 35 **under § 8-122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.**

36 **(3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer**
 37 **and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and**
 38 **delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then**
 39 **shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the**
 40 **Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable**

1 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of the Epsilon
2 Omega Foundation, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the
3 planning, design, construction, renovation, and capital equipping of the Ivy Family
4 Support Center, to be located at 3515 Dolfeld Avenue in Baltimore, Maryland.

5 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
6 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
7 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
8 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

9 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
10 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
11 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either
12 directly or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or
13 unappropriated. The fund may consist of real property, in kind contributions, or funds
14 expended prior to the effective date of this Act. In case of any dispute as to the amount
15 of the matching fund or what money or assets may qualify as matching funds, the
16 Board of Public Works shall determine the matter and the Board's decision is final.
17 The grantee has until June 1, 2003, to present evidence satisfactory to the Board of
18 Public Works that a matching fund will be provided. If satisfactory evidence is
19 presented, the Board shall certify this fact and the amount of the matching fund to the
20 State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan equal to the amount of the matching
21 fund shall be expended for the purposes provided in this Act. Any amount of the loan
22 in excess of the amount of the matching fund certified by the Board of Public Works
23 shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

24 (6) **THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR**
25 **ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES**
26 **PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2010. IF ANY FUNDS**
27 **AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER**
28 **JUNE 1, 2010, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED**
29 **AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF**
30 **BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR**
31 **UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §**
32 **8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

33 **Chapter 175 of the Acts of 2001**

34 **SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF**
35 **MARYLAND, That:**

36 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
37 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Calvert
38 County – Chesapeake Beach Railway Trail Loan of 2001 in a total principal amount of
39 \$250,000. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale, and delivery of State
40 general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board of Public Works and

1 issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8–117 through 8–124 of the State
2 Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

3 (2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold
4 as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds
5 under § 8–122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.

6 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
7 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
8 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
9 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
10 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
11 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Mayor and Town Council of the Town
12 of Chesapeake Beach (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the
13 planning, design, and construction of facilities for the Chesapeake Beach Railway
14 Trail, a recreational trail that will include paved trails, timber walkways, and bridges.

15 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
16 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
17 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
18 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

19 (5) **THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR**
20 **ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES**
21 **PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2011. IF ANY FUNDS**
22 **AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER**
23 **JUNE 1, 2011, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED**
24 **AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF**
25 **BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR**
26 **UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §**
27 **8–129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

28 ***Chapter 243 of the Acts of 2001, as amended by Chapter 219 of the Acts of 2004***

29 **SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF**
30 **MARYLAND, That:**

31 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
32 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Kent County –
33 Echo Hill Outdoor School Improvements Loan of 2001 in the total principal amount of
34 \$300,000. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale, and delivery of State
35 general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board of Public Works and
36 issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8–117 through 8–124 of the State
37 Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

1 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
2 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
3 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
4 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
5 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
6 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of The London Town
7 Foundation, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the planning,
8 design, construction, and capital equipping of a visitors center and museum at Historic
9 London Town and Gardens at 839 Londontown Road in Edgewater, Maryland.

10 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
11 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
12 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
13 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

14 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
15 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
16 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either directly
17 or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or unappropriated. The
18 fund may consist of in kind contributions. No part of the fund may consist of real
19 property or funds expended prior to the effective date of this Act. In case of any dispute
20 as to the amount of the matching fund or what money or assets may qualify as
21 matching funds, the Board of Public Works shall determine the matter and the Board's
22 decision is final. The grantee has until June 1, 2003, to present evidence satisfactory to
23 the Board of Public Works that a matching fund will be provided. If satisfactory
24 evidence is presented, the Board shall certify this fact and the amount of the matching
25 fund to the State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan equal to the amount of the
26 matching fund shall be expended for the purposes provided in this Act. Any amount of
27 the loan in excess of the amount of the matching fund certified by the Board of Public
28 Works shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

29 **(6) THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR ENCUMBERED**
30 **BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES PROVIDED IN THIS ACT**
31 **NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2010. IF ANY FUNDS AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN**
32 **UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER JUNE 1, 2010, THE AMOUNT OF THE**
33 **UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND**
34 **BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE**
35 **AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE**
36 **DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN § 8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND**
37 **PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

38 **Chapter 466 of the Acts of 2001**

39 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
40 MARYLAND, That:

1 (1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on
2 behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Harford
3 County – Hosanna School Loan of 2001 in a total principal amount equal to the lesser
4 of (i) \$186,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided in accordance with
5 Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the issuance, sale, and delivery of
6 State general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution of the Board of Public Works
7 and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§ 8–117 through 8–124 of the State
8 Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22 of the Code.

9 (2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold
10 as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds
11 under § 8–122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.

12 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
13 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
14 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
15 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
16 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
17 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Commissioners of the
18 Harford County Historic Preservation Commission (referred to hereafter in this Act as
19 "the grantee") for the planning, design, construction, reconstruction, and capital
20 equipping of the Hosanna School, located in Berkley, Maryland.

21 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
22 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
23 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
24 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

25 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
26 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
27 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either
28 directly or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or
29 unappropriated. No part of the fund may consist of real property, in kind
30 contributions, or funds expended prior to the effective date of this Act. In case of any
31 dispute as to the amount of the matching fund or what money or assets may qualify as
32 matching funds, the Board of Public Works shall determine the matter and the
33 Board's decision is final. The grantee has until June 1, 2003, to present evidence
34 satisfactory to the Board of Public Works that a matching fund will be provided. If
35 satisfactory evidence is presented, the Board shall certify this fact and the amount of
36 the matching fund to the State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan equal to the
37 amount of the matching fund shall be expended for the purposes provided in this Act.
38 Any amount of the loan in excess of the amount of the matching fund certified by the
39 Board of Public Works shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

40 (6) No portion of the proceeds of the loan or any of the matching funds may
41 be used for the furtherance of sectarian religious instruction, or in connection with the
42 design, acquisition, or construction of any building used or to be used as a place of

1 sectarian religious worship or instruction, or in connection with any program or
 2 department of divinity for any religious denomination. Upon the request of the Board
 3 of Public Works, the grantee shall submit evidence satisfactory to the Board that none
 4 of the proceeds of the loan or any matching funds have been or are being used for a
 5 purpose prohibited by this Act.

6 **(7) THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR**
 7 **ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES**
 8 **PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2009. IF ANY FUNDS**
 9 **AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER**
 10 **JUNE 1, 2009, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED**
 11 **AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF**
 12 **BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR**
 13 **UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §**
 14 **8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

15 **Chapter 673 of the Acts of 2001**

16 **SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF**
 17 **MARYLAND, That:**

18 **(1) The Board of Public Works may borrow money and incur indebtedness on**
 19 **behalf of the State of Maryland through a State loan to be known as the Calvert County**
 20 **– The Boys and Girls Clubs of Southern Maryland Loan of 2001 in a total principal**
 21 **amount equal to the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund**
 22 **provided in accordance with Section 1(5) below. This loan shall be evidenced by the**
 23 **issuance, sale, and delivery of State general obligation bonds authorized by a resolution**
 24 **of the Board of Public Works and issued, sold, and delivered in accordance with §§**
 25 **8-117 through 8-124 of the State Finance and Procurement Article and Article 31, § 22**
 26 **of the Code.**

27 **(2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold as**
 28 **a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds under §**
 29 **8-122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.**

30 **(3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer**
 31 **and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and**
 32 **delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then**
 33 **shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the**
 34 **Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable**
 35 **architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of The Boys and**
 36 **Girls Clubs of Southern Maryland, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the**
 37 **grantee") for the planning, design, construction, reconstruction, and capital equipping**
 38 **of a building in Calvert County to house a Boys and Girls Club.**

1 (2) The bonds to evidence this loan or installments of this loan may be sold
2 as a single issue or may be consolidated and sold as part of a single issue of bonds
3 under § 8-122 of the State Finance and Procurement Article.

4 (3) The cash proceeds of the sale of the bonds shall be paid to the Treasurer
5 and first shall be applied to the payment of the expenses of issuing, selling, and
6 delivering the bonds, unless funds for this purpose are otherwise provided, and then
7 shall be credited on the books of the Comptroller and expended, on approval by the
8 Board of Public Works, for the following public purposes, including any applicable
9 architects' and engineers' fees: as a grant to the Board of Directors of the Palmer Park
10 Boys and Girls Club, Inc. (referred to hereafter in this Act as "the grantee") for the
11 planning, design, repair, renovation, and capital equipping of a facility at Barlowe
12 Road in Palmer Park to house the Palmer Park Boys and Girls Club.

13 (4) An annual State tax is imposed on all assessable property in the State in
14 rate and amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds, as and
15 when due and until paid in full. The principal shall be discharged within 15 years
16 after the date of issuance of the bonds.

17 (5) Prior to the payment of any funds under the provisions of this Act for the
18 purposes set forth in Section 1(3) above, the grantee shall provide and expend a
19 matching fund. No part of the grantee's matching fund may be provided, either
20 directly or indirectly, from funds of the State, whether appropriated or
21 unappropriated. The fund may consist of real property, in kind contributions, or funds
22 expended prior to the effective date of this Act. In case of any dispute as to the amount
23 of the matching fund or what money or assets may qualify as matching funds, the
24 Board of Public Works shall determine the matter and the Board's decision is final.
25 The grantee has until June 1, 2005, to present evidence satisfactory to the Board of
26 Public Works that a matching fund will be provided. If satisfactory evidence is
27 presented, the Board shall certify this fact and the amount of the matching fund to the
28 State Treasurer, and the proceeds of the loan equal to the amount of the matching
29 fund shall be expended for the purposes provided in this Act. Any amount of the loan
30 in excess of the amount of the matching fund certified by the Board of Public Works
31 shall be canceled and be of no further effect.

32 **(6) THE PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN MUST BE EXPENDED OR**
33 **ENCUMBERED BY THE BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE PURPOSES**
34 **PROVIDED IN THIS ACT NO LATER THAN JUNE 1, 2009. IF ANY FUNDS**
35 **AUTHORIZED BY THIS ACT REMAIN UNEXPENDED OR UNENCUMBERED AFTER**
36 **JUNE 1, 2009, THE AMOUNT OF THE UNENCUMBERED OR UNEXPENDED**
37 **AUTHORIZATION SHALL BE CANCELED AND BE OF NO FURTHER EFFECT. IF**
38 **BONDS HAVE BEEN ISSUED FOR THE LOAN, THE AMOUNT OF UNEXPENDED OR**
39 **UNENCUMBERED BOND PROCEEDS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF AS PROVIDED IN §**
40 **8-129 OF THE STATE FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT ARTICLE.**

1 **Chapter 204 of the Acts of 2003, as amended by Chapter 432 of the Acts of**
2 **2004**

3 SECTION 13. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That:

4 (3) (i) \$15,200,000 for the following projects initially approved
5 by the Senate:

6 (BJ) Barbara Ingram School for the Arts. Provide a grant of
7 \$400,000 to the [Mayor and City Council of the City of
8 Hagerstown] **BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE**
9 **HAGERSTOWN NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT**
10 **PARTNERSHIP, INC.**, for the acquisition, planning, design,
11 renovation, reconstruction, and capital equipping of the
12 Barbara Ingram School for the Arts, located in Hagerstown,
13 subject to a requirement that the grantee provide a matching
14 fund of \$270,000 and grant and convey an historic easement
15 to the Maryland Historical Trust. Notwithstanding Section
16 13(5) of this Act, the matching fund may consist of real
17 property, in kind contributions, or funds expended prior to the
18 effective date of this Act (Washington County) 400,000

19 **Chapter 204 of the Acts of 2003, as amended by Chapter 432 of the Acts of**
20 **2004 and Chapter 555 of the Acts of 2006**

21 SECTION 13. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That:

22 (3) (i) \$15,200,000 for the following projects initially approved by the
23 Senate:

24 (BI) Old Carvers Heights – South Hampton Community Village.
25 Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$250,000 or (ii) the
26 amount of the matching fund provided, to the Board of
27 Directors of Save the Village, Inc. for the planning, design,
28 construction, repair, renovation, reconstruction, and capital
29 equipping of Old Carvers Heights – South Hampton
30 Community Village, located in Lexington Park, subject to a
31 requirement that the grantee grant and convey an historic
32 easement to the Maryland Historical Trust. Notwithstanding
33 Section 13(5) of this Act, the matching fund may consist of
34 real property or in kind contributions, and the grantee has
35 until June 1, [2008] **2010**, to present evidence that a
36 matching fund will be provided (St. Mary’s County) 250,000

37 **Chapter 204 of the Acts of 2003, as amended by Chapter 432 of the Acts of**
38 **2004 and Chapter 608 of the Acts of 2006**

1 SECTION 13. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That:

2 (3) (i) \$15,200,000 for the following projects initially approved by the
3 Senate:

4 (AM) [Kensington Recreation Center.] WARNER MANOR. Provide
5 a grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of
6 the matching fund provided, to the ~~County Executive and~~
7 ~~County Council of Montgomery County~~
8 **MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING**
9 **COMMISSION** for the [acquisition,] planning, [and] design,
10 **RENOVATION, AND DEMOLITION** of the [Kensington
11 Recreation Center,] **WARNER MANOR**, located in
12 Kensington. Notwithstanding Section 13(5) of this Act, the
13 matching fund may consist of real property and the grantee
14 must present evidence that a matching fund will be provided
15 by June 1, [2008] **2010** (Montgomery County) 100,000

16 **Chapter 204 of the Acts of 2003, as amended by Chapter 176 of the Acts of**
17 **2005**

18 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
19 MARYLAND, That:

20 (3) ZA00 MISCELLANEOUS GRANT PROGRAMS

21 (B) Baltimore Zoo Redevelopment Projects. Provide a grant to the
22 Maryland Zoological Society to assist in the construction of
23 redevelopment projects at the Baltimore Zoo, subject to the
24 requirement that the grantee provide an equal and matching
25 fund for this purpose. The grantee may provide the matching
26 fund and the Board of Public Works may certify the matching
27 fund in installments during the period beginning with the
28 effective date of this Act and ending on June 1, [2008] **2012**.
29 Each installment of the matching fund that the grantee
30 provides shall be at least [\$1,000,000] **\$250,000**. Except as
31 specifically provided herein, the matching fund shall be
32 subject to Section 1(5) of this Act (Baltimore City) 3,500,000

33 **Chapter 445 of the Acts of 2005**

34 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
35 MARYLAND, That:

36 (3) ZA01 LOCAL HOUSE OF DELEGATES INITIATIVES

1 (U) Project T.O.O.U.R. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)
 2 \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to
 3 the Board of Directors of Project T.O.O.U.R., Inc. for the
 4 planning, design, repair, renovation, reconstruction, and
 5 capital equipping of two adjacent buildings that will serve as
 6 a neighborhood service center providing community
 7 assistance programs, located in Baltimore City.
 8 Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund
 9 may consist of real property, in kind contributions, or funds
 10 expended prior to the effective date of this Act.
 11 **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE**
 12 **GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT**
 13 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
 14 (Baltimore City) 100,000

15 ZA02 LOCAL SENATE INITIATIVES

16 (Y) Waxter Center for Senior Citizens. Provide a grant equal to
 17 the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching
 18 fund provided, to the Mayor and City Council of the City of
 19 Baltimore for the repair, renovation, reconstruction, [and]
 20 capital equipping, **AND NEW CONSTRUCTION** of the Waxter
 21 Center for Senior Citizens, located in Baltimore City.
 22 Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund
 23 may consist of funds expended prior to the effective date of
 24 this Act (Baltimore City) 100,000

25 (BK) Paint Branch Creek Restoration. Provide a grant [equal to the
 26 lesser of (i)] **OF** \$218,000 [or (ii) the amount of the matching
 27 fund provided,] to the Board of Directors of Anacostia
 28 Watershed Society, Inc. for the planning, design, restoration,
 29 erosion abatement, and stabilization of the [portion of Paint
 30 Branch creek located between the north gate of the University
 31 of Maryland and Interstate 495 in College Park] **PAINT**
 32 **BRANCH AND LITTLE PAINT BRANCH WATERSHEDS**
 33 **DOWN TO THE CONFLUENCE WITH THE NORTHEAST**
 34 **BRANCH** (Prince George’s County) 218,000

35 Chapter 445 of the Acts of 2005, as amended by Chapter 65 of the Acts of 2007

36 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
 37 MARYLAND, That:

38 (3) ZA01 LOCAL HOUSE OF DELEGATES INITIATIVES

1 (AR) Old Blair High School Auditorium. Provide a grant equal to
2 the lesser of (i) \$300,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching
3 fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the Old Blair
4 Auditorium Project, Inc. for the repair, renovation,
5 construction, reconstruction, and capital equipping of the Old
6 Blair High School Auditorium located in Silver [Spring,]
7 **SPRING.** [subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and
8 convey an historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.]
9 Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund
10 may consist of in kind contributions or funds expended prior to
11 the effective date of this Act and the grantee must present
12 evidence that a matching fund will be provided by June 1,
13 2009.(Montgomery County) 300,000

14 ZA02 LOCAL SENATE INITIATIVES

15 (AV) Old Blair High School Auditorium. Provide a grant equal to
16 the lesser of (i) \$300,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching
17 fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the Old Blair
18 Auditorium Project, Inc. for the repair, renovation,
19 construction, reconstruction, and capital equipping of the Old
20 Blair High School Auditorium located in Silver [Spring,]
21 **SPRING.** [subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and
22 convey an historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.]
23 Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund
24 may consist of in kind contributions or funds expended prior to
25 the effective date of this Act and the grantee must present
26 evidence that a matching fund will be provided by June 1,
27 2009.(Montgomery County) 300,000

28 **Chapter 46 of the Acts of 2006**

29 SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
30 MARYLAND, That:

31 (3) ZA00 MISCELLANEOUS GRANT PROGRAMS

32 (C) Hagerstown YMCA. Provide a grant to the Board of Directors
33 of the Young Men’s Christian Association of Hagerstown,
34 Maryland, Inc., to assist in the renovation and expansion of
35 the Hagerstown YMCA, subject to the requirement that the
36 grantee provide an equal and matching fund for this purpose.
37 **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE**
38 **GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT**
39 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
40 (Washington County) 400,000

1 the Board of [Trustees] **DIRECTORS** of the Baltimore City
 2 Historical Society, Inc. for the planning, design, construction,
 3 repair, renovation, reconstruction, and capital equipping of
 4 the Peale Museum, located on Holliday Street in Baltimore
 5 City, subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and
 6 convey a historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.
 7 **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE**
 8 **GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT**
 9 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
 10 (Baltimore City) 125,000

11 (AD) The Powerhouse. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)
 12 \$125,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to
 13 the Board of Directors of The East Harbor Community
 14 Development Corporation for the planning, design,
 15 construction, repair, renovation, reconstruction, and capital
 16 equipping of a community center, to be located in Baltimore
 17 City, subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and
 18 convey a historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.
 19 Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund
 20 may consist of funds expended prior to the effective date of
 21 this Act. **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT,**
 22 **THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT**
 23 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
 24 (Baltimore City) 125,000

25 (AZ) Agricultural Activity Center Expansion. Provide a grant equal
 26 to the lesser of (i) \$75,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching
 27 fund provided, to the ~~County Executive and County Council of~~
 28 ~~Montgomery County~~ **MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL**
 29 **PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION** for the construction,
 30 repair, reconstruction, and capital equipping of the
 31 Agricultural Activity Center at the Agricultural History Farm
 32 Park, located in Derwood. **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION**
 33 **1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1,**
 34 **2010, TO PRESENT EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND**
 35 **WILL BE PROVIDED (Montgomery County) 75,000**

36 (BB) [Circle] WARNER Manor. Provide a grant equal to the lesser
 37 of (i) \$150,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund
 38 provided, to the [Mayor and Town Council of the Town of
 39 Kensington and] ~~the County Executive and County Council of~~
 40 ~~Montgomery County~~ **MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL**
 41 **PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION** for the [acquisition]
 42 **PLANNING, DESIGN, RENOVATION, AND DEMOLITION** of

1	<u>[Circle] WARNER Manor, located in Kensington, subject to a</u>	
2	<u>requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic</u>	
3	<u>easement to the Maryland Historical Trust. Notwithstanding</u>	
4	<u>Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund may consist of</u>	
5	<u>REAL PROPERTY AND funds expended prior to the effective</u>	
6	<u>date of this Act. NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF</u>	
7	<u>THIS ACT, THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO</u>	
8	<u>PRESENT EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE</u>	
9	<u>PROVIDED (Montgomery County)</u>	<u>150,000</u>
10	(BW) Historic Laurel Mill Ruins. Provide a grant of \$50,000 to [the	
11	Patuxent River Commission and] the Mayor and City Council	
12	of the City of Laurel for the repair, stabilization, and	
13	reconstruction of the Historic Laurel Mill Ruins, located in	
14	Laurel (Prince George's County)	50,000
15	(CA) <u>New Revival Center [for] OF Renewal. Provide a grant equal</u>	
16	<u>to the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching</u>	
17	<u>fund provided, to the [County Executive and County Council</u>	
18	<u>of Prince George's County] BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NEW</u>	
19	<u>REVIVAL CENTER OF RENEWAL, INC. for the acquisition of</u>	
20	<u>[land] PROPERTY for the New Revival Center [for] OF</u>	
21	<u>Renewal, located in [Capitol Heights] WALDORF.</u>	
22	<u>NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE</u>	
23	<u>GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2009, TO PRESENT</u>	
24	<u>EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED</u>	
25	<u>(Prince George's County)</u>	<u>100,000</u>
26	(CK) Discovery Station at Hagerstown. Provide a grant of \$50,000	
27	to the Board of Directors of the Discovery Station at	
28	Hagerstown, Inc. for the construction of exhibits and	
29	renovation of the Discovery Station at Hagerstown site,	
30	located in Hagerstown, subject to a requirement that the	
31	grantee provide and expend a matching fund of \$30,000.	
32	Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund	
33	may consist of in kind contributions or funds expended prior	
34	to the effective date of this Act. NOTWITHSTANDING	
35	SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL	
36	JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING	
37	FUND WILL BE PROVIDED (Washington County)	50,000
38	(CP) <u>Our House Youth Home. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of</u>	
39	<u>(i) \$175,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided,</u>	
40	<u>to the Board of Directors of Our House Youth Home, Inc. for</u>	
41	<u>the construction and capital equipping of a new dormitory at</u>	

1 Our House Youth Home, located in Olney, subject to a
 2 requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic
 3 easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.
 4 **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE**
 5 **GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2009, TO PRESENT**
 6 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
 7 **(Montgomery County) 175,000**

8 ZA02 LOCAL HOUSE OF DELEGATES INITIATIVES

9 (N) Linthicum Walks. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)
 10 \$50,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to
 11 the [Board of Directors of Anne Arundel Heritage, Inc.]
 12 **COUNTY EXECUTIVE AND COUNTY COUNCIL OF ANNE**
 13 **ARUNDEL COUNTY for the structural repair and renovation**
 14 **of Linthicum Walks, located in Gambrills, subject to a**
 15 **requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic**
 16 **easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.**
 17 **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE**
 18 **GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2009, TO PRESENT**
 19 **EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED**
 20 **(Anne Arundel County) 50,000**

21 (W) Baltimore Clayworks. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)
 22 \$150,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to
 23 the Board of Trustees of Baltimore Clayworks, Inc. for the
 24 planning, design, construction, capital equipping, and
 25 installation of an elevator and community and multipurpose
 26 rooms, and the repair, renovation, and reconstruction of
 27 upgrades to the plumbing, electrical, and roofing systems of
 28 Baltimore Clayworks, Inc., located in Baltimore City, subject
 29 to a requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic
 30 easement to the Maryland Historical Trust. Notwithstanding
 31 Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund may consist of in
 32 kind contributions. **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF**
 33 **THIS ACT, THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO**
 34 **PRESENT EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE**
 35 **PROVIDED (Baltimore City) 150,000**

36 (AC) Peale Museum. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)
 37 \$125,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to
 38 the Board of [Trustees] **DIRECTORS** of the Baltimore City
 39 Historical Society, Inc. for the planning, design, construction,
 40 repair, renovation, reconstruction, and capital equipping of
 41 the Peale Museum, located in Baltimore City, subject to a

1	requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic	
2	easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.	
3	NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE	
4	GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT	
5	EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED	
6	(Baltimore City)	125,000
7	<u>(AD)</u> <u>The Powerhouse. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i)</u>	
8	<u>\$125,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to</u>	
9	<u>the Board of Directors of The East Harbor Community</u>	
10	<u>Development Corporation for the planning, design,</u>	
11	<u>construction, repair, renovation, reconstruction, and capital</u>	
12	<u>equipping of a community center, to be located in Baltimore</u>	
13	<u>City, subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and</u>	
14	<u>convey a historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.</u>	
15	<u>Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund</u>	
16	<u>may consist of funds expended prior to the effective date of</u>	
17	<u>this Act. NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT,</u>	
18	<u>THE GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2010, TO PRESENT</u>	
19	<u>EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED</u>	
	(Baltimore City)	<u>125,000</u>
20	<u>(AZ)</u> <u>Our House Youth Home. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of</u>	
21	<u>(i) \$250,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided,</u>	
22	<u>to the Board of Directors of Our House Youth Home, Inc. for</u>	
23	<u>the construction and capital equipping of a new dormitory at</u>	
24	<u>Our House Youth Home, located in Olney, subject to a</u>	
25	<u>requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic</u>	
26	<u>easement to the Maryland Historical Trust.</u>	
27	<u>NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE</u>	
28	<u>GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2009, TO PRESENT</u>	
29	<u>EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED</u>	
30	(Montgomery County)	<u>250,000</u>
31	<u>(BU)</u> <u>New Revival Center of Renewal. Provide a grant equal to the</u>	
32	<u>lesser of (i) \$80,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund</u>	
33	<u>provided, to the [County Executive and County Council of</u>	
34	<u>Prince George's County] BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF NEW</u>	
35	<u>REVIVAL CENTER OF RENEWAL, INC. for the acquisition of</u>	
36	<u>[land] PROPERTY for the New Revival Center of Renewal,</u>	
37	<u>located in [Capitol Heights] WALDORF.</u>	
38	<u>NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS ACT, THE</u>	
39	<u>GRANTEE HAS UNTIL JUNE 1, 2009, TO PRESENT</u>	
40	<u>EVIDENCE THAT A MATCHING FUND WILL BE PROVIDED</u>	
41	(Prince George's County)	<u>80,000</u>

Chapter 488 of the Acts of 2007

SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF MARYLAND, That:

(3) KA05 CAPITAL GRANTS AND LOANS ADMINISTRATION

(A) Community Parks and Playgrounds. Provide funds for grants to local governments to design and construct eligible projects (Statewide). Further provided that \$2,000,000 of this appropriation may only be used to provide grants for the following projects:

(4) Woodstock Equestrian Park. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$250,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to the [Board of Trustees of the Montgomery County Parks Foundation, Inc.] MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION for the planning, design, construction, and capital equipping of a public equestrian park, located in Beallsville, subject to a requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic easement to the Maryland Historical Trust (Montgomery County).

ZA00 MISCELLANEOUS GRANT PROGRAMS

(B) Comprehensive Housing Assistance, Inc. Provide a grant to THE ASSOCIATED: Jewish Community Federation of Baltimore for the design, construction, and capital equipping of a community development building in the Park Heights Avenue neighborhood near their existing campus, AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT OFFICE SPACE AT THE SITE OF THE ASSOCIATED: JEWISH COMMUNITY CENTER CAMPUS IN OWINGS MILLS, subject to the requirement that the grantee provide an equal and matching fund for AND EXPEND A MATCHING FUND OF \$1,500,000 [this purpose] THESE PURPOSES (Baltimore City AND BALTIMORE COUNTY) (BALTIMORE CITY).....

2,500,000

(S) [Slave Church.] CHERRY HILL CHURCH. Provide a grant of \$300,000 to the Board of Directors of [the Friends of Benjamin Banneker Historical Park and Museum, Inc.] THE FRIENDS OF CHERRY HILL AUMP, INC. for the

1	<u>acquisition, planning, design, construction, reconstruction,</u>	
2	<u>renovation, RESTORATION, and capital equipping of [a slave</u>	
3	<u>church] THE CHERRY HILL CHURCH, located in</u>	
4	<u>Randallstown (Baltimore County)</u>	<u>300,000</u>
5	ZA01 LOCAL HOUSE INITIATIVES	
6	(X) <u>United Cerebral Palsy Facility. Provide a grant equal to the</u>	
7	<u>lesser of (i) \$200,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund</u>	
8	<u>provided, to the Board of Directors of the United Cerebral</u>	
9	<u>Palsy of Central Maryland, Inc. for the design, construction,</u>	
10	<u>and capital equipping of a multipurpose facility for the</u>	
11	<u>disabled, located in [Owings Mills.] BALTIMORE COUNTY.</u>	
12	<u>Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the matching fund</u>	
13	<u>may consist of in kind contributions or funds expended prior to</u>	
14	<u>the effective date of this Act (Baltimore County)</u>	<u>200,000</u>
15	(Z) Northeast Skate Park. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of	
16	(i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided,	
17	to the County Executive and County Council of Baltimore	
18	County for the planning, design, construction, and capital	
19	equipping of a regional skate park, located in [Overlea]	
20	NORTHEAST BALTIMORE COUNTY (Baltimore County)	100,000
21	(AV) Ernest Everett Just Monument. Provide a grant [equal to the	
22	lesser of (i)] OF \$75,000 [or (ii) the amount of the matching	
23	fund provided,] to the Board of Directors of The Ernest	
24	Everett Just Foundation, Inc. for the planning, design, and	
25	construction of a statue commemorating Ernest Everett Just,	
26	located in Mitchellville, SUBJECT TO A REQUIREMENT THAT	
27	THE GRANTEE PROVIDE AND EXPEND A MATCHING FUND	
28	OF \$5,000. Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the	
29	matching fund may consist of real property, in kind	
30	contributions, or funds expended prior to the effective date of	
31	this Act (Prince George's County)	75,000
32	(BD) <u>Reid Community Business Development Center. Provide a</u>	
33	<u>grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of</u>	
34	<u>the matching fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the</u>	
35	<u>Reid Community Development Corporation for the</u>	
36	<u>acquisition, planning, construction, and capital equipping of</u>	
37	<u>the Reid Community Business Development Center, located</u>	
38	<u>in [Bowie] PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY (Prince George's</u>	
39	<u>County)</u>	<u>100,000</u>
40	(BV) <u>Delmarva Discovery Center on the Pocomoke River. Provide a</u>	

1 grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$100,000 or (ii) the amount of
 2 the matching fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the
 3 Pocomoke Marketing Partnership, Inc. for the planning,
 4 design, construction, renovation, and capital equipping of [a
 5 steamboat exhibit] **EXHIBITS** at the Delmarva Discovery
 6 Center on the Pocomoke River, located in Pocomoke City
 7 (Worcester County) 100,000

8 ZA02 LOCAL SENATE INITIATIVES

9 (AP-1) Chesapeake and Ohio Canal National Historic Catoclin
 10 Aqueduct. Provide a grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$200,000 or
 11 (ii) the amount of the matching fund provided, to the Board of
 12 Directors of the Catoclin Aqueduct Restoration Fund, Inc. for
 13 the repair, restoration, reconstruction, and stabilization of the
 14 National Historic Catoclin Aqueduct, located at the 51.5 mile
 15 mark of the C&O Canal between Point of Rocks and
 16 Brunswick. **NOTWITHSTANDING SECTION 1(5) OF THIS**
 17 **ACT, THE MATCHING FUND MAY CONSIST OF FUNDS**
 18 **EXPENDED PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ACT**
 19 (Frederick County) \$200,000

20 (BI) Woodstock Equestrian Park. Provide a grant equal to the
 21 lesser of (i) \$250,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching fund
 22 provided, to the [Board of Trustees of the Montgomery County
 23 Parks Foundation, Inc.] **MARYLAND-NATIONAL CAPITAL**
 24 **PARK AND PLANNING COMMISSION** for the planning,
 25 design, construction, and capital equipping of a public
 26 equestrian park, located in Beallsville, subject to a
 27 requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic
 28 easement to the Maryland Historical Trust (Montgomery
 29 County) 250,000

30 (BL) Ernest Everett Just Monument. Provide a grant [equal to the
 31 lesser of (i)] **OF \$75,000** [or (ii) the amount of the matching
 32 fund provided,] to the Board of Directors of The Ernest
 33 Everett Just Foundation, Inc. for the planning, design, and
 34 construction of a statue commemorating Ernest Everett Just,
 35 located in Mitchellville, **SUBJECT TO A REQUIREMENT THAT**
 36 **THE GRANTEE PROVIDE AND EXPEND A MATCHING FUND**
 37 **OF \$5,000.** Notwithstanding Section 1(5) of this Act, the
 38 matching fund may consist of real property, in kind
 39 contributions, or funds expended prior to the effective date of
 40 this Act (Prince George’s County) 75,000

41 (BO) Historic Laurel Mill Ruins. Provide a grant of \$100,000, to

1	[the Patuxent River Commission and] the Mayor and City	
2	Council of the City of Laurel for the repair, stabilization, and	
3	reconstruction of the Historic Laurel Mill Ruins, located in	
4	Laurel (Prince George’s County)	100,000
5	<u>(BT) Reid Community Business Development Center. Provide a</u>	
6	<u>grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$200,000 or (ii) the amount of</u>	
7	<u>the matching fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the</u>	
8	<u>Reid Community Development Corporation for the</u>	
9	<u>acquisition, planning, construction, and capital equipping of</u>	
10	<u>the Reid Community Business Development Center, located</u>	
11	<u>in [Bowie] PRINCE GEORGE’S COUNTY (Prince George’s</u>	
12	<u>County)</u>	<u>200,000</u>
13	<u>(CC) Barbara Ingram School for the Arts. Provide a grant equal to</u>	
14	<u>the lesser of (i) \$150,000 or (ii) the amount of the matching</u>	
15	<u>fund provided, to the [Mayor and City Council of the City of</u>	
16	<u>Hagerstown] BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE</u>	
17	<u>HAGERSTOWN NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT</u>	
18	<u>PARTNERSHIP, INC., for the repair, renovation,</u>	
19	<u>reconstruction, and capital equipping of the Barbara Ingram</u>	
20	<u>School for the Arts, located in Hagerstown, subject to a</u>	
21	<u>requirement that the grantee grant and convey a historic</u>	
22	<u>easement to the Maryland Historical Trust (Washington</u>	
23	<u>County)</u>	150,000
24	<u>(CE) Delmarva Discovery Center on the Pocomoke River. Provide a</u>	
25	<u>grant equal to the lesser of (i) \$50,000 or (ii) the amount of the</u>	
26	<u>matching fund provided, to the Board of Directors of the</u>	
27	<u>Pocomoke Marketing Partnership, Inc. for the planning,</u>	
28	<u>design, construction, renovation, and capital equipping of [a</u>	
29	<u>steamboat exhibit] EXHIBITS at the Delmarva Discovery</u>	
30	<u>Center on the Pocomoke River, located in Pocomoke City</u>	
31	<u>(Worcester County)</u>	<u>50,000</u>

32 SECTION 2. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That this Act shall take effect
 33 June 1, 2008.